
TOWN OF 

NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
375 MAIN STREET • NEW LONDON, NH  03257 • WWW.NL-NH.COM 

 
 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
MEETING MINUTES 

JUNE 9, 2008 
 
PRESENT: 
Mark Kaplan, Selectman 
Larry Ballin, Selectman 
Brian Prescott, Selectman 
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator 
June Fichter, Executive Director, Lake Sunapee Protective Association, & Sunapee Area Watershed 

Coalition 
Terry Dancy, New London Conservation Commission & Sunapee Area Watershed Coalition 
Dale Conly, New London Planning Board and Conservation Commission 
Terry Bingham, Messer Pond Protective Association 
Chet Reynolds, Chair, New London Energy Committee 
Harry Snow, Developer 
David Seastrand, New London Police Chief 
Jason Lyon, New London Fire Chief 
Kent Wheeler, New London Hospital Ambulance 
Debbie Cross, InterTown Record 
 
Mark Kaplan opened the meeting at 8 a.m., and the Board addressed ten items of business during the 
meeting.  
 
Sunapee Area Watershed Coalition 
 
Terry Dancy explained that the Sunapee Area Watershed Coalition (SAWC) members feel that since the 
Selectmen of the six towns within the watershed have been supportive of the formation of this coalition 
and the study itself, they would like now to meet with all six boards to update them on progress. He said 
that June Fichter has met with the Sunapee Selectmen, so this in New London is their second Selectmen’s 
meeting.  He added that they have received financial assistance, primarily in the form of a pilot grant 
obtained through DES, and have been able to have parts of the study conducted by LSPA and the Upper 
Valley Sunapee Regional Planning Commission.  He said that in reviewing the file he found a letter dated 
as far back as October 2001 from Jessie Levine supporting the study. In 2004 the Coalition was formed, 
and now they are ready to present a final draft of the watershed plan. 
 
June Fichter distributed a copy of the Watershed Plan and an Executive Summary.  She also made 
available copies of a Stormwater Management Guide that resulted from recent work done at Chalk Pond. 
She pointed out that the recommendations in the Plan, summarized here in the Executive Summary, will 
not only protect the Sunapee watershed but are applicable in all towns, and if implemented, would result 
in some cost savings.  
 
She said DES is looking at this plan as a model for other areas, and has asked SAWC to do an addendum 
to the plan that would include the water quality model measuring phosphorus.  This model was consistent 
with a similar one done several years ago in anticipating that at current rates of development, the 
phosphorus levels in the lake are likely to increase as much as three times.  She said that that means that 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
the lake which is clear today will be pushed into a different category of water body, including more algae 
and plants, and will no longer be desirable as a drinking water source or for recreation. 
 
She said the Watershed Plan makes 64 recommendations, and she has narrowed those down to the three 
most important in the Executive Summary.  
 
a) Stormwater Runoff.  The Coalition is asking towns to give the Stormwater Management Guide out 

with building permits. In addition, swirler basins can be installed to catch some of the sediment.  One 
is planned for Pleasant Lake.  Other action plans call for development of an ordinance that would 
focus on controlling runoff for individual lots, not just subdivisions, and the maintenance of erosion 
controls even after construction is complete.   

 
b) Septic systems. The Coalition recommends developing an educational program for maintenance of 

septic systems, and it recommends that towns create data bases about current septic systems.  Terry 
Dancy noted that in the study they found that none of the six towns in the watershed keep good 
records (on septics or wells, for example, or erosion controls) for individual properties.    By having 
good records, they would be able to see trends.   

 
c) Improving understanding and compliance with existing ordinances. She emphasized that the 

Coalition’s objective was not the creation of additional, more onerous ordinances.  UVSRPC did 
develop a matrix of the towns’ existing ordinances, and the Coalition feels that if these are complied 
with, water quality could be maintained and improved.  She noted also that the building permit 
process is a good tool to use to increase landowner awareness and responsibility.   

 
Terry Dancy said that one of the first question they are asked is, how much did this cost from the 
beginning up to now. He said there is no cost to the towns. The cost of developing the plan was entirely 
covered by grants.  If they get into other aspects, there may be some costs, but in implementing some of 
the recommendations, there may also be some savings.   
 
June Fichter said they cannot overemphasize that the “do nothing” approach will be more expensive in the 
long run, given the numbers in the full build-out analysis.  She referred again to the water quality model, 
and said that the reason phosphorus is used is that it is a good indicator of other elements in the lake.  A 
three-fold increase in phosphorus would really change the nature of the lake.   
 
Mark Kaplan asked if the recommendations in the plan will hold the water quality at the level it is at now, 
or will they result in some improvement.  June Fichter said their objective is to hold current levels, but if 
the recommendations result in some reduction in phosphorus levels, that would be even better. She said 
that DES would love the Coalition to find ways to lower phosphorus, and research is being conducted. 
Terry Dancy acknowledged that development is inevitable, and he noted that the increase in population 
pressure will increase phosphorus. Mark Kaplan asked where phosphorus comes from. Terry Dancy said 
from runoff on roads and construction, and from groundwater stemming from septic systems.   
 
Brian Prescott asked where the swirler basin will be on Pleasant Lake. June Fichter said they plan to put it 
near the present dam.  Brian Prescott asked if it would be better near the inflow rather than the outflow.  
June Fichter said Robert Wood is working with Pleasant Lake Protective Association on this, and she said 
they found a great deal of runoff sediment from the Wilmot Center Road. She and Terry Dancy agreed 
that this (where to locate swirler basins) may bear more discussion.   
 
Brian Prescott asked if there are any statistics on the impact of gas products or of climate changes on 
water quality.  June Fichter said there are some numbers referring to the impact of petroleum products on 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
water quality, but she said that is a different kind of problem.  As far as climate change goes, she said that 
UNH and DES have done studies showing that has already had an impact on water quality. The higher 
water temperatures and the late formation of ice, and the earlier ice-out, have allowed some algae to grow 
during all four seasons.   
 
June Fichter said research being conducted predicts an increase in the number and severity of storms, and 
raises the question of infrastructure adequacy. Terry Dancy said a great deal of work is being done in this 
area, and there is data available on the sizing and adequacy of culverts, for example.   
 
Brian Prescott asked why testing the septic systems in all the small camps and cottages around the lakes is 
not made a priority, as those are being used more now.  June Fichter said that SAWC does not have the 
authority to do that. Terry Dancy said that a requirement that each of those be tested and the results along 
with other maintenance information be kept on record, would have to be approved at Town Meeting.  It 
would be a difficult requirement to implement and would have to be done on a political level.  He went on 
to say that even discovering all the underground fuel tanks around lakes is a challenge.  Brian Prescott 
asked about dye testing. June Fichter said that is not always accurate.  
 
Larry Ballin asked if the main problem stems from properties right on the lake, or does the cause include 
those set further back. He is asking the question because there has been some consideration given to 
bringing the sewer system down as far as Lamson lane, and possibly looping it around the lake. He 
wondered what percentage of the phosphorus problem would be resolved by doing that.  Terry Dancy said 
their testing program does include water samples from the streams that flow into the lake. Both he and 
June Fichter agreed that there are many unknowns remaining.  
 
Dale Conly said that New London does have LID requirements for subdivisions and site plans, and he 
added that entities as the hospital are voluntarily utilizing those at increased cost to themselves.  But, 
Terry Dancy pointed out that requirement applies only to subdivisions; they need to address individual 
houses as well.  He said that in the matrix of six towns’ ordinances, they found that all six had good 
regulations that apply to subdivisions, but none at all applicable to individual house lots.   
 
Going back to the subject of record keeping, he suggested this should be done with private wells as well 
as for septic systems.  Without keeping data on water test results from private wells, they will never know 
if there is any deterioration of the aquifers.   
 
Mark Kaplan asked if radon testing is required before someone can sell a house. Jessie Levine said that’s 
a standard for houses in a subdivision, but not a law.  
 
She responded to the recommendations discussed today.  She agreed that New London could give out the 
Stormwater Guide along with the erosion control brochure the Town already provides during the building 
permit process, and they could require an owner sign off for those.  As far as developing an ordinance 
similar to Newbury’s that would address individual house lots, she said they could bring that idea back to 
the Planning Board.  She said New London does have erosion control requirements to be implemented 
during the construction phase, and it might be reasonable to require LID practices during the building 
phase.  New London is the only town that has its own health officer inspect and approve new septic 
systems.  Terry Dancy said the building permit is a valuable tool in that it requires a commitment of 
certain things. He suggested they require the owner, not the owner’s representative, to sign off. Larry 
Ballin said he thought that might be impractical, given the number of trusts in New London.   
 
He asked if they have monitored the phosphorus in Lake Solitude.  June Fichter said they have measured 
it. Everyone agreed that as that is above most development, it would be interesting data to have.  



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
 
Energy Committee 
 
Chet Reynolds, Chairman of the Energy Committee, briefed the Selectmen on HB 1628 that provides 
financial incentives for small alternative energy sources. He said those sources may include solar, mini-
hydro and wind turbines. He spoke at some length on the last, pointing out that right now, New London’s 
height limit of 35 feet would preclude those.  He said that height is a significant factor in the efficacy of 
wind turbines.  If a wind turbine is doubled in height, the amount of energy it can provide is increased 
threefold.   
 
He has asked the other members of the Energy Committee to review the draft model small wind 
ordinance for the State of Maryland, with the idea that he will draft a similar ordinance for New London 
and submit that to the Master Plan Committee.  He said successful implementation of wind energy 
production in New London would require the enlistment of people with enough interest to become experts 
in this field, that the height ordinance be modified, and that other relevant ordinances be so modified (for 
example, lot sizes and setbacks).   
 
Brian Prescott asked if these would be for private use.  Chet Reynolds said yes, they could be as small as 
those that produce only 5 kw/hr.  Jessie Levine said they would have to be prepared to answer 
homeowners who will want to build wind turbines large enough to allow them to sell some of the excess 
energy back to PSNH.   
 
Larry Ballin asked what an efficient height and diameter would be.  Chet Reynolds said it depends on the 
location.  He used his own location as an example, saying that an 80’ tower with a 12’ diameter (of the 
windmill arms) would be efficient.  He noted that six feet of the height includes the windmill arms.   
 
Brian Prescott asked if there are any matching funds from the State.  Chet Reynolds referred to the 
Renewable Energy Fund that will begin in 2009 to require that utilities add sources of renewable energy 
to the mix they deliver to customers.  When they (the utilities) cannot buy or generate enough alternate 
energy electrons, they will make an Alternate Compliance Payment. The ACP’s will create a fund from 
which grants can be issued to individuals—for as much as 50% the cost of installation of an alternate 
energy source.  
 
Mark Kaplan asked what the advantage is in such small wind turbines as 5kw, and what if the wind dies 
down.  Chet Reynolds said the average home uses 9,000 to 10,000 kw per year. He explained that one of 
the requirements of HB 1628 is that the individual energy source be connected to a grid, and the owner 
will get credit for the excess energy produced.  More to the point, however, he said that his feeling is that 
a small alternate energy source will have to be a hybrid, in that it should include a charged battery to 
assure even distribution of energy.  
 
He said his real focus right now is to encourage the Board to consider modifying the height ordinance 
within context of everything else—safety, environmental issues, etc.  Larry Ballin said he will bring this 
issue to the attention of the Master Plan Subcommittee.  That will be the place to address alternate energy.  
He noted that there is a process that has to be followed.  
 
He added that there must also be consideration of other alternates such as mini-hydro and solar.  Chet 
Reynolds agreed, but said he has been asked to initiate discussion of wind turbines specifically. One of 
alternate energy’s biggest problems has been to convince legislators to expand the purview of alternate 
energy to include wind.  He pointed out that not everyone has access to a stream for a mini-hydro plant, 
and solar installation is very expensive—though he anticipates seeing more of that.  He said that for a 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
long time Vermont has been subsidizing 30% of the cost of installation of home turbines of 100-feet, 
generating 10 kw/hr.  He said to promote the issue, they need to define the objectives, identify any 
negatives and determine what the return on the investment will be.   
 
Jessie Levine asked about membership on the Energy Committee. Chet Reynolds said they are looking 
for new members. As it is, they are too small a group to address all the issues themselves. Alternate 
energy is a complex topic, and the Committee’s goal is to come up with a coherent concept and make 
some simple, reasonable recommendations. He said he thinks the wind turbine issue is one that could 
make a major contribution to energy conservation. Another recommendation that may come out of the 
Committee’s work is that the Town take a look at the way it constructs buildings.   
 
Larry Ballin suggested something on this subject be put on the link, and he will bring it up at the next 
CAC meeting.   
 
Brian Prescott asked what the cost would be for an 80-foot tower.  Chet Reynolds said that for a 
monopole tower, the cost would be between $15,000 and $25,000; it would generate 3kw.  He said a 
lattice work tower would be less expensive. Maintenance requirements would vary.   
 
Harry Snow’s Request for Road Name at His Development on Messer Pond 
 
Prior to the meeting, Selectmen received copies of New London’s Street Numbering and Addressing 
ordinance, a list of existing road names, the National Emergency Number Association guidelines and the 
State of New Hampshire’s Addressing Standards Guide.  
 
Harry Snow attended the meeting to request approval for naming the road into his new subdivision 
“Rocky Ridge Lane.”  Jessie Levine cited safety concerns particularly as they pertain to emergency 
response, in adopting a name similar to two others in Town. She said there already is a road named 
“Ridge Road” and on Pleasant Lake, there is a private road called “Rocky Point.”   
 
She said that in adopting the street numbering and addressing ordinance in 2005, the goals were to 
eliminate redundancy of street names and to number units so that each number represents twenty feet, 
thus aiding emergency workers in locating a particular site.  She said that during the process, the owners 
of the Rocky Point cottages asked the Town to give each unit a separate number.  At that time, Rocky 
Point did get added to the dispatch map, but due to oversight was not added to the list of road names. The 
most recent update of that list does include Rocky Point.  She suggested they not make the redundancy 
that exists between Ridge Road and Rocky Point worse by adding the name Rocky Ridge Lane.   
 
Harry Snow pointed out that there is some overlap on the list already. Several names begin with “Old” or 
“Little.”  He said if safety is a concern, there is not even a sign at Rocky Point.  Jessie Levine said that the 
work in 2005 resulted in 25 street names being changed. She agreed that they may not have gone far 
enough.   
 
Harry Snow said he has spoken with the Fire and Police Chiefs and with the Road Agent, all of whom 
feel the combination of the three words -- Rocky Ridge Lane -- makes it distinct from the others.  
 
Jason Lyon said when he first saw the proposed name, he did not have a problem, but later noticed the 
existence of Rocky Point. He agreed that it is important to be as clear as possible especially for volunteers 
who are responding to a call. David Seastrand said that when he first responded to Harry Snow, he did not 
know about the Rocky Point cottages but saw it clearly on the Town’s dispatch map.   
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
Mark Kaplan asked if they allow this name, would the Town be sued if there is a problem with emergency 
workers going to a wrong address.  Jessie Levine said that is not certain, but there is always the possibility 
that the Town could be sued and the possibility that it could be found liable.   
 
Harry Snow asked about the process for street naming.  Jessie Levine referred him to page two, section 
IV-B of New London’s addressing ordinance.   
 
Both Mark Kaplan and Brian Prescott said they would be opposed to making things more confusing by 
adding this name to the list.   
 
Harry Snow then asked for approval of “Pond’s Edge Lane.”  And while he was here, he also asked to 
name the hammerhead on Everett Park “Apple Tree Lane.” 
 

Brian Prescott moved to approve both new names. Larry Ballin seconded. Motion unanimously approved.  
 
Chamber Lease 
 
Jessie Levine said this lease is identical to the previous one with some clarification of #5.  Since the 
Chamber is not a charitable organization, it is required to pay property taxes for its structures.   
 
Larry Ballin referred to Exhibit A that describes the premises that will be leased, and suggested amending 
the last sentence so that it reads: “Premises do not include the entirety of the Town Common (known as 
the “Little Common”) and do not include any specific right or privilege to use the Town parking lot or the 
remainder of the Little Common other than that accrued to any member of the public.”   
 
Brian Prescott moved that Selectmen sign the lease as amended. Larry Ballin seconded. No further 
discussion. Motion unanimously approved.   
 
Crockett’s Corner 
 
Prior to the meeting, Selectmen received copies of a draft letter to be signed by DOT Project Manager 
James Marshall and Jessie Levine. The letter will be addressed to concerned parties and will begin the 
study of improvements to the Route 11 and Route 114 intersection. The letter will propose two initial 
focus meetings: on July 7, they would like to share information, history and brainstorm possible design 
alternatives, and on August 14, they would like to review and comment on those design options.   
 
At this meeting, Selectmen suggested that in addition to State Representation, New London’s 
representation should include all three Selectmen (if possible) as well as representation from Planning, 
Police, Fire, Public Works, and the Water Precinct.  Jessie Levine said that the State would like 
representatives from the hospital (in addition to ambulance) and the college as they are the Town’s largest 
employers.  Larry Ballin also suggested that neighbors be notified—he would include on that list 
everyone on Route 11 between Fairway Lane and Rowell Hill Road, and those on Route 114 for a similar 
distance.  Jessie Levine said that ideally the two focus meetings would be limited to about 20.  There will 
be larger informational meetings later on.  She suggested that in addition to the official representation, 
they include only the immediate abutters, at least for the July 7 meeting.  She did say that she feels it 
important for all three Selectmen to attend, especially if the Town is going to participate in the funding. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
New England Resource Recovery 
 
Jessie Levine said the meeting last Monday was well attended, and it seems New London is doing the best 
possible at this time, in recycling.  The best discussion seemed to be between the Town and those present 
(the speaker provided under the grant was ineffective). 
 
Jessie Levine also reported receipt of a rebate check in the amount of $63,000 from the New 
Hampshire/Vermont Solid Waste Project. That’s 6 cents on the tax rate.  Mark Kaplan pointed out that in 
the twenty years New London belonged to NHVT SWP, it delivered 60,000 tons so that comes to about 
$1000/ton. 
 
Committee Reports 
 

• Larry Ballin reported that at Tuesday’s Planning Board meeting, the Board held the preliminary 
hearing for the Cate subdivision on Route 103A.   

 

• Jessie Levine reported that at the roundabout progress meeting on Wednesday, they addressed some 
billing related questions, and the staging of materials.  It seems Knight’s Hill parking lot may not be 
an option. At this meeting, Selectmen agreed that contractors should just continue using the right of 
way for materials, unless a better option offers itself.   

 
Other 
 
Larry Ballin said he received a question regarding skateboarding in the roads. Jessie Levine said that three 
years ago, the idea of an ordinance came up but was met with public objection. At the time, the Selectmen 
directed the Police Chief and the late Recreation Director to work on alternatives, including a skateboard 
park, but nothing came of that assignment.  The proposal for a skateboard park has not taken off.  Larry 
Ballin said he would not be in favor of an ordinance prohibiting skateboarding in the roads, but said that 
people must be aware that the kids are out there.  
__ 
 
Non-Public Session: At 9:30 a.m., in accordance with NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a), motion was made (Ballin), 
seconded (Prescott), and unanimously approved (roll call: Kaplan, Ballin, Prescott) to enter non-public 
session in order to discuss a personnel matter. Selectmen reentered public session at 9:45 AM. 
__ 
 
Community Center 
 
Jessie Levine opened some discussion on the status of the Community Center. Larry Ballin and Jessie 
Levine attended last Friday’s meeting of the Community Center board, and both agreed that it if the Town 
does not get behind this, the whole project could fall apart.  Jessie Levine said it has become a 
chicken/egg question.  The Community Center would like the Town to become involved in order to show 
Town support and encourage private donation, and the Town wants to see a show of private donation 
before it signs on.  Mark Kaplan pointed out that the Town did show its support in the past by agreeing to 
purchase the land on Pleasant Street when that location was being considered. All acknowledged that was 
an older plan that is no longer relevant. 
 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 
Jessie Levine said Larry Ballin had asked Dan Wolf if the school district would be willing to sell the 
building to the Town, and while he could not answer one way or the other, among his concerns was that if 
the district were to sell it, it should go to the highest bidder.   
 
Brian Prescott expressed concern that the Town not become involved in the project if it is going to 
become a money pit.  Jessie Levine agreed. She would be able to put together a plan addressing such 
questions as whether this would become a Town Department.  She would be less inclined to take 
responsibility for putting together a fundraising plan.  Selectmen agreed that the Community Center 
Board must be more active with fundraising.   
 
The Community Center Board will meet with the CAC on June 28. 
 
Police Department: Jessie Levine reported receipt of taser use reports from the Police Department 
including the report generated after the May 2, 2008 incident that damaged the trap.  So far, the Police 
have not tased anyone, but have used the tasers as a deterrent. This has been documented with every 
instance, according to the use of force reports.  She also received today from Chief David Seastrand the 
Calls for Service report from the Police Department, which she distributed to the Board of Selectmen. 
 
Signatures 
 
Selectmen signed the following items: 
 
Applications for Building Permits: 
 

• Thomas McKee Trust, 518 Burpee Hill (Map & Lot 070-016-000) re-do roof & garage add windows 
and doors – Permit #08-059 – Approved. 

• William Horn Trust, 178 Old Main Street (Map & Lot 107-015-000) remove porch, add sunroom re-
roof house – Permit #08-060 – Approved. 

• William & Pamela Spear, Baker Road (Map & Lot 112-011-000) build new 6 bedroom house – 
Permit # 08-061 – Approved. 

• Harry M. Snow, III, Wilder Lane (Map & Lot 112-007-000) build new 4 bedroom house 2 car garage 
– Permit #08-062 – Approved. 

 
Applications for Permanent Sign Permits: 
 

• Gourmet Garden @ New London Inn, 353 Main St. (Map & Lot 084-089-000) Gourmet Garden NH 
& NE Food Gift Baskets – Approved. 

• Penny Murane/Unleashed, 277 Newport Road (Map & Lot 059-008-000) replacing Abercrombie 
signs – Approved.  

 
Application for use of Town Common & Bandstand: 
 

• North Country Region, Porsche Club of America, July 20, 2008 7:00 AM – 5:00 PM – Approved.  

• Friends of Norris Cotton Cancer Center, July 11, 2008 8:30 am – 12:00 pm – Approved. 
 
Application for use of Whipple Town Hall: 
 

• New London Players, June 9, 10, 12, 13, & 14, 2008 – 1:00 pm – 6:00 pm and 7:00 – 10:00. 
Approved. 



Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 9 
June 9, 2008   
 
 

 
Warrant for the Supplementary Sewer Charge: 
 

• Supplementary Sewer Bill for the first half of 2008 – Approved. 
 
Warrant for Unlicensed Dogs: 
 

• RSA Chapter 466:14 to issue civil forfeiture notice after June 16, 2008 – Approved. 
 

Tax Abatement: 
 

• Steven & Susanne Greenbaum, 500 Otterville Road (Map & Lot 042-004 & 005) Property should 
have been annexed for this tax billing, amount abated: $1,232.51 – Approved. 

 
Waste Water (Sewer) Tax Abatements: 
 

• Fay, Amy L. 2008 Trust – (Map & Lot 144-001-072) 72 Hilltop Place, overcharged for bond 
repayment – abated amount: $13.06 – Approved. 

• Hall, Phillip, Jr. – (Map & Lot 144-001-055) 55 Hilltop Place, overcharged for capital improvement 
payment on bills – abated amount: $13.06 – Approved. 

• Blanchard, Edward & Putnam, Nancy – (Map & Lot 093-011-000) 182 Everett Park, overcharged for 
capital improvement payment on bills – abated amount: $9.00 – Approved. 

• Pesando, John – (Map & Lot 044-032-000) 54 Checkerberry Lane, meter was read incorrectly  - 
abated amount: $340.00 – Approved. 
 

Other: 
 

• Disbursement & payroll voucher week of 6/9/08 -- Approved. 

• Application for raffle: Our Lady of Fatima – fund raiser Holiday Fair – 11/10/08 – Approved. 

• Warrant Yield Tax Levy for Martha Harris Trust, (Map & Lot 046 002-000) in the amount of 
$127.98. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 10 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Sarah A.Denz 
Recording Secretary 


